
 
AGENDA 

City of Lucas  
City Council Meeting  

August 2, 2018  
7:05 PM  

(or immediately following the Lucas Fire Control Prevention and EMS District meeting) 
City Hall – Council Chambers 

665 Country Club Road – Lucas, Texas  
 

Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Lucas City Council will be held on Thursday, August 2, 2018 at 7:05 pm (or immediately 
following the Lucas Fire Control Prevention and EMS District meeting) at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 
75002-7651 at which time the following agenda will be discussed.  As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, 
the City Council may convene into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from the City Attorney 
on any item on the agenda at any time during the meeting.  
 
Call to Order  
 

• Roll Call 
• Determination of Quorum  
• Reminder to turn off or silence cell phones 
• Pledge of Allegiance 

 
Citizen Input  
The Citizen Input portion of the agenda is an opportunity for the public to address the City Council on any subject.  By completing a 
“Request to Speak” form and submitting to the City Secretary, citizens have an opportunity to speak at the City Council meeting.  
However, in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, the City council cannot discuss issues raised or make any decisions but 
may refer items to City Staff for research and possible inclusion on a future agenda.  
 
1. Citizen Input (Mayor Jim Olk) 
 
Community Interest  
Pursuant to Section 551.0415 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may report on the following items: 1) expression of thanks, 
congratulations or condolences; 2) information about holiday schedules; 3) recognition of individuals; 4) reminders about upcoming 
City Council events; 5) information about community events; and 6) announcements involving imminent threat to public health and 
safety.  
 
2. Community Interest. (Mayor Jim Olk) 
 
Consent Agenda  
All items listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and are recommended to the City Council for a single vote approval.  
If discussion is desired, an item may be removed from the consent agenda for a separate vote.  
 
3. Consent Agenda:  
 

A. Approval of the minutes of the July 19, 2018 City Council meeting. (City Secretary Stacy 
Henderson) 

 



B. Consider amending the Fiscal Year 17/18 budget account 11-4985 Grant Revenues in the 
amount of $3,050.70 for a grant funded from North Central Texas Trauma Regional 
Advisory Council EMS-County Assistance. (Finance Director Liz Exum) 

 
C. Consider calling two public hearings regarding the City of Lucas Tax Rate for Fiscal Year 

2018-2019 with the first public hearing to be held on August 16, 2018 and the second 
public hearing (if needed) to be held on September 6, 2018. (Finance Director Liz Exum) 

 
D. Consider calling one public hearing regarding the City of Lucas Fiscal Year 2018-2019 

budget to be held on September 6, 2018. (Finance Director Liz Exum) 
 
Regular Agenda  

 
4. Consider adding a Little League baseball field in the Community Park next to City Hall. 

(Councilmember Tim Baney) 
 
5. Consider authorizing the development of a lease agreement with the United States Army 

Corps of Engineers to enable the City of Lucas to manage the Brockdale Park Trailhead, 
Brockdale Park Boat Ramp, Highland Park Trailhead and the Highland Park Boat Ramp and 
allocate funding in the Fiscal Year 2018/2019 Budget. (Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele)  

 
6. Consider the proposed City of Lucas Property Tax Rate for Fiscal Year 2018-2019. (Finance 

Director Liz Exum) 
 
7. Discuss the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Proposed Budget. (Finance Director Liz Exum) 
 
8. Consider amending the 2017 Comprehensive Plan for the City of Lucas regarding the 2017 

Master Thoroughfare Plan as adopted in Ordinance 2017-03-00850 on Mach 16, 2017. (Public 
Works Director/City Engineer Stanton Foerster) 

 
9. Update by Staff regarding the construction activities along West Lucas Road by Reynolds 

Asphalt. (Public Works Director/City Engineer Stanton Foerster) 
 
10. Discuss revisions made to the draft technology and communication survey for Lucas residents 

and provide direction to staff regarding survey content. (City Manager Joni Clarke) 
 
Executive Session Agenda  
As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may convene into closed Executive Session for the 
purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from the City Attorney regarding any item on the agenda at any time during the meeting.  
 
11. Executive Session: An Executive Session is not scheduled for this meeting.  
 
12. Adjournment.  
  



 
Certification  
I do hereby certify that the above notice was posted in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act on the bulletin board at Lucas 
City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, TX 75002 and on the City’s website at www.lucastexas.us on or before 5:00 p.m. on July 27, 
2018.   
 
 

____________________________ 
Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 

 
 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City of Lucas will provide for reasonable accommodations for persons 
attending public meetings at City Hall. Requests for accommodations or interpretive services should be directed to Stacy Henderson at 
972.912.1211 or by email at shenderson@lucastexas.us at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 



Item No. 01 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

August 2, 2018 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk  
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Citizen Input  
 
 
Background Information  
 
NA 
 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
NA 
 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
 NA 
 
 
Recommendation  
  
NA 
 
 
Motion  
 
NA 

 



Item No. 02 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

August 2, 2018 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk  
 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
2. Items of Community Interest.  
 
 
Background Information  
 
NA 
 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
NA 
 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
 
Recommendation  
 
NA 
 
 
Motion  
 
NA 
 
 



Item No. 03 
 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

August 2, 2018 
 

Requester: City Secretary Stacy Henderson 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
3. Consent Agenda:  
 

A. Approval of the minutes of the July 19, 2018 City Council meeting. 
 
B. Consider amending the Fiscal Year 17/18 budget account 11-4985 Grant Revenues in 

the amount of $3,050.70 for a grant funded from North Central Texas Trauma 
Regional Advisory Council EMS-County Assistance.    

 
C. Consider calling two public hearings regarding the City of Lucas Tax Rate for Fiscal 

Year 2018-2019 with the first public hearing to be held on August 16, 2018 and the 
second public hearing (if needed) to be held on September 6, 2018.  

 
D. Consider calling one public hearing regarding the City of Lucas Fiscal Year 2018-

2019 budget to be held on September 6, 2018.  
 

Background Information  
 
Agenda Item 3B:  
 
Fire-Rescue applied for a grant with the North Central Texas Trauma Regional Advisory Council 
and met all the requirements to receive the grant. Funds received will be placed in the General 
Fund.  
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Minutes of the July 19, 2018 City Council meeting. 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
 
City Staff recommends approval of the Consent Agenda.  
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  



1 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  
  J u l y  1 9 ,  2 0 1 8  

City of  Lucas 
City Council Meeting 

July 19, 2018 
6:05 P.M. 

(or immediately following the Lucas Fire Control, Prevention and EMS District Board Meeting)  
City Hall - 665 Country Club Road – Lucas Texas 

 
MINUTES 

 
Call to Order  
 
Mayor Olk called the meeting to order at 6:09 p.m. 
 
City Councilmembers Present: 
Mayor Jim Olk 
Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele 
Councilmember Wayne Millsap 
Councilmember Tim Baney 
Councilmember Steve Duke 
Councilmember Philip Lawrence 
Councilmember Debbie Fisher  

Staff Present: 
City Manager Joni Clarke  
City Secretary Stacy Henderson 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  
Public Works Director/City Engineer Stanton Foerster 
Finance Director Liz Exum  
Fire Chief Ted Stephens 
Assistant Fire Chief Lance Gant  
Public Works Supervisor Jeremy Bogle 
Human Resources Generalist Janice Babcock 
Special Projects Coordinator Cathey Bonczar 

 
Mayor Olk determined that a quorum was present.  Everyone was reminded to silence their cell 
phones and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited.   
 
Citizen Input  
 
1. Citizen Input. 
 
There was no citizen input at this meeting.  
 
Community Interest  
 
2. Community Interest.  
 
Councilmember Fisher reminded City staff working outside to stay hydrated and safe during the 
extreme weather conditions were experiencing. 
 
Public Hearing Agenda  
 
3.      Public Hearing to discuss an annexation application submitted by Max Lewis on 

behalf of Liberty Bankers for a replat of Lakeview Downs recorded as instrument 
number 201001 190000 100 consisting of 116 lots and being 148.842 acres of land out of 



2 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  
  J u l y  1 9 ,  2 0 1 8  

the Thomas James Survey ABS# 477 and the Montgomery Birch Survey ABS# 115, 
located near the intersection of East Lucas Road and Snider Lane.  

 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn informed the Council that as part of the annexation, 
the City would receive approximately one-half mile of roadway and one mile of water main as part 
of the new development.  
 
Mayor Olk opened the public hearing at 6:13pm and called the following individuals forward that 
requested to speak.  
 
Patsy Black, 2180 Snider Lane, informed the Council that new street signs had been put in place that 
state Snider Road rather than Snider Lane.  
 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn stated that he would speak with the developer to have 
the signage changed.  
 
Patsy Young, 625 Blondy Jhune, stated that she was concerned about speeding traffic on Blondy 
Jhune and additional traffic being created by the development.  Ms. Young also asked why the 
development was allowed to have one-acre lots.  
 
Mayor Olk explained that the development was located within the County and was being annexed 
into the City as one-acre lots.  
 
Mayor Olk closed the public hearing at 6:21 pm.  
 
There was no formal action taken on this item, it was for discussion purposes only.  
 
Consent Agenda  
 
4. Consent Agenda. 

 
A. Approval of the minutes of the July 5, 2018 City Council meeting.  

 
MOTION: A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Peele, seconded by Councilmember Fisher 

to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  The motion passed unanimously by a 
7 to 0 vote.  

 
Regular Agenda  

 
5. Consider setting a date to discuss updates to the City’s Master Thoroughfare Plan.  
 
The City Council set a date of August 2, 2018 to discuss updates to the City’s Master Thoroughfare 
Plan.  
 
6. Update by Staff regarding the construction activities along West Lucas Road by 

Reynolds Asphalt and provide direction to the City Manager on the same.  
 



3 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  
  J u l y  1 9 ,  2 0 1 8  

Public Works Director/City Engineer Stanton Foerster informed the Council that recently a plow 
had damaged approximately 1,500 feet of West Lucas Road.  Reynolds Asphalt has marked locations 
on the roadway where it will be milled and overlay would begin the week of July 23, 2018.  The 
project would be completed before school begins mid-August.  
 
There was no action taken on this item, it was for information purposes only.  
 
7. Discuss the proposed City of Lucas budget for Fiscal Year 2018-2019.  
 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn discussed development trends, the number of 
subdivisions within the City and residential lots currently within the City limits.  He noted that the 
current population was approximately 8,000 and at buildout, the population would be approximately 
13,000.  Mr. Hilbourn explained that development was slowing, and discussed commercial activity 
on Angel Parkway and various locations throughout the City. 
 
Public Works Director/City Engineer Stanton Foerster discussed capital projects related to streets, 
projects already funded, and funds being requested from NCTCOG for West Lucas Road/Stinson 
Road intersection as well as the Country Club/Estates Parkway intersection. Mr. Foerster discussed 
future capital projects as well as addressing dead-end water lines in the City.  
 
Finance Director Liz Exum gave a presentation discussing previous years tax rate and the proposed 
tax rate for the 18-19 budget of $.303.  Ms. Exum discussed projected revenue, funds set aside for 
pay as you go projects, and unrestricted reserves of 14 months.  Ms. Exum discussed General Fund 
reserves, Water Fund reserves, property tax collection, and revenue projects.  
 
Mr. Hilbourn discussed impact fees that were proposed to be added to the Master Fee Schedule.  
The City Council was in favor of adding the impact fees to the Master Fee Schedule.  
 
City Manager Joni Clarke discussed personnel services and the compensation study proposed in the 
budget.  Ms. Clarke discussed the competitive nature of surrounding cities, and the need to measure 
how the City stands comparatively.  Ms. Clarke stated that it was standard practice for compensation 
studies to be conducted every three to five years.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Peele stated that she didn’t believe enough time had passed since the last study 
where City staff was brought in line with the market at the time.  Councilmember Fisher discussed 
the methodology used for the previous study of average vs. median, and believed a median should 
be used.  
 
The City Council discussed various ways to obtain salary study and information and whether the 
study was warranted.  The Council was in agreement not to fund the study at this time, and to ask 
for funding should it be warranted for a certain position.  
 
City staff members gave presentations discussing items proposed within their budgets.  The 
following City staff members spoke:  
 
-  City Secretary Stacy Henderson:  City Council asked that funds related to video streaming be 

renamed to Technology and Communication Improvements.  
 



4 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  
  J u l y  1 9 ,  2 0 1 8  

-  Public Works Director/City Engineer Stanton Foerster:  City Council asked that On-Call 
Service be reduced to its original amount.  Should additional funds be needed, Council 
directed staff to adjust the budget later in the fiscal year.  

 
-   Public Works Supervisor Jeremy Bogle: No changes were proposed to the Public Works 

Operations budget  
 
-  Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn: No changes were proposed to the 

Development Services budget.  
 
-  Fire Chief Ted Stephens: The City Council was not in favor of purchasing an electronic sign 

but requested that funds remain in the budget earmarked for facility improvements and non-
digital sign upgrades.  

 
The City Council discussed ambulance service provided at Lovejoy High School football games and 
response to citizen calls during those games.  Mayor Olk noted that when the Lovejoy ISD contract 
comes due for ambulance service, he would like it brought before the City Council for review.  
 
City Manager Joni Clarke discussed funds budgeted for employee cost of living increases, merit 
increases, law enforcement, information technology support, and animal control and animal 
sheltering services with Collin County.  
 
Ms. Exum discussed water fund revenue and the effective rate calculation.  
 
Councilmember Fisher asked how much of an impact would occur on the City if the tax rate was 
calculated below the effective rate.  
 
The City Council asked that a new calculation be made lowering the M&O rate going under the 
effective tax rate and have that made available to the Council when it was complete.  
 
There was no formal action taken on this item, it was for discussion purposes only.  
 
Executive Session Agenda  
 
8. Executive Session. 
 
An Executive Session did not take place at this meeting.  
 
9. Adjournment.  
  
MOTION:  A motion was made by Councilmember Millsap, seconded by Mayor Olk to adjourn 

the meeting at 9:34 pm.  The motion passed unanimously by a 7 to 0 vote.  
 
 
APPROVED:       ATTEST: 

 
  
        ____________________________ 
Jim Olk, Mayor      Stacy Henderson, City Secretary  



Item No. 04 
 
 
 
 

Requester: City Councilmember Tim Baney  

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

August 2, 2018 

 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider adding a Little League baseball field in the Community Park next to City Hall. 
 
Background Information  
 
Due to the demand on current baseball fields, a suggestion was presented to City staff proposing 
the addition of a Little League baseball field. City owned land located next to the Community 
Center at the back of the Lucas Community Park could accommodate a practice field.  Staff 
brought this forward to the Parks and Open Space Board at their July 24 meeting for their 
consideration.  The Parks Board unanimously voted to bring this request before the City Council 
for consideration to be included as part of the 2018-2019 fiscal year budget.  
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 

1. Depiction of City Hall property  
2. Rough draft of City property with baseball field 

 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
A practice field is estimated to cost approximately $25,000 to $30,000 and is currently not 
included in the Fiscal Year 18/19 proposed budget.  The cost estimate does not include items 
such as bleachers, dugouts, or benches.  
 
Recommendation  
 
The Parks Board recommended to bring this request before the City Council for consideration to 
be included as part of the 2018-2019 fiscal year budget.  
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to approve/deny adding a Little League baseball field in the Community Park 
next to City Hall and allocating funds in the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 budget in the General Fund 
(fund 11) Parks Department (6211) in a new line item in the amount of $30,000. 
 
 
 
 
 







Item No. 05 
 
 
 
 

Requester: Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele  

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

August 2, 2018 

Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider authorizing the development of a lease agreement with the United States Army Corps 
of Engineers to enable the City of Lucas to manage the Brockdale Park Trailhead, Brockdale 
Park Boat Ramp, Highland Park Trailhead and the Highland Park Boat Ramp and allocate 
funding in the Fiscal Year 2018/2019 Budget. 
 
Background Information  
 
In May 2016, a meeting was held with representatives from the United States Army Corps of 
Engineers (USACE) and the City of Lucas to discuss the process to lease property from the 
United States Army Corps of Engineers.  The City of Lucas also expressed an interest in leasing 
Trinity Trail and work in partnership with the Trinity Trail Preservation Association (TTPA) to 
preserve the trail for equestrian and pedestrian use but the USACE indicated that it would be 
unlikely that they would support any lease beyond park boundaries.   
 
With substantial development occurring at Brockdale Park, Inspiration and Lakeview Downs, the 
timing may be right to formalize our partnership with Trinity Trail Preservation Association 
(TTPA) by leasing the trailheads and boat ramps from the USACE and take responsibility for the 
management of these park facilities.  Currently, the City of Lucas provides mowing services for 
the Brockdale and Highland Park trailheads. 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 

1. Email from Duke Monson, President of Trinity Trail Preservation Association (TTPA) 
dated March 22, 2015 highlighting maintenance performed by TTPA volunteers 

2. Meeting notes from the meeting held with the United States Army Corps of Engineers on 
May 11, 2016 

3. Notes from site visit on May 20, 2016 regarding possible maintenance and improvements 
to Brockdale and Highland Park Trailheads 

4. Maintenance and Management Agreement between Collin County and Trinity Trail 
Preservation Association 

5. Memorandum of Understanding Between the United States Army Corps of Engineers and 
Collin County  

6. Map of Brockdale Park 
7. Map of Highland Park 

 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
In the May 2016 meeting between the USACE and the City of Lucas, the USACE suggested that 
as part of its business plan submittal that the City be able to demonstrate that funding has been 
allocated to maintain the leased areas.  Funding for phase 1 of this project would include 
surveying and general maintenance (including clean up, tree trimming, pot hole repair and 



Item No. 05 
 
 
 
 

Requester: Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele  

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

August 2, 2018 

signage) in the amount of $30,000.  It would also include the removal of the sewer treatment 
plant at Brockdale and the removal of a restroom building at the Highland Park boat ramp both 
of which are dilapidated in the amount of $20,000.  Total recommended funding for fiscal year 
2018/2019 would be $50,000. 
 
Recommendation  
 
Authorize Mayor Pro Tem Peele and the City Manager to proceed with negotiating the lease 
agreement with the USACE. 
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to approve/deny authorizing the development of a lease agreement with the 
United States Army Corps of Engineers to enable the City of Lucas to manage the Brockdale 
Park Trailhead, Brockdale Park Boat Ramp, Highland Park Trailhead and Highland Park Boat 
Ramp and allocate funding in the Fiscal Year 2018/2019 Budget in the General Fund (fund 11) 
Parks Department (6211) in a new line item in the amount of $50,000.  
 
 



































Item No. 06 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

August 2, 2018 
 

Requester: Finance Director Liz Exum 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider the proposed City of Lucas Property Tax Rate for Fiscal Year 2018-2019. 
 
Background Information  
 
The Finance Department has received the effective and rollback calculations for the 2018-2019 
tax year from the county tax assessor.  Property tax options have been reviewed by staff and are 
being presented to the City Council for vote on a proposed tax rate for Fiscal Year 2018-2019. The 
property tax rate options for FY 2018-2019 are as follows: 
 

1. Effective tax rate - $.303216 ($.202346 M&O and $.100870 Debt). 
2. The maximum roll back tax rate - $.305540 ($.2024670 M&O and $.100870 Debt).   
3. Existing tax rate minus 2 cents - $.297948 ($.197078 M&O and $.100870 Debt). 

 
The City of Lucas history of property tax rates are as follows: 
 

Fiscal Year M&O I&S Total 
FY 2017-2018 .198695 .119253 .317948 
FY 2016-2017 .230371 .087577 .317948 
FY 2015-2016 .215514 .105147 .320661 
FY 2014-2015 .233068 .087593 .320661 
FY 2013-2014 .254005 .101611 .355616 
FY 2012-2013 .261218 .112959 .374177 
FY 2011-2012 .257723 .116454 .374177 
FY 2010-2011 .247231 .126946 .374177 
FY 2009-2010 .252040 .122137 .374177 
FY 2008-2009 .250509 .123668 .374177 

 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 

1. Property tax options worksheet for FY 2018-2019. 
2. Newly annexed properties revenue analysis for FY 2018-2019. 
3. Effective and Rollback tax calculation from Collin County Tax Assessor-Collector. 

 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
The financial impact to the budget is detailed in the property tax option worksheet. 
 



Item No. 06 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

August 2, 2018 
 

Recommendation  
 
The three property tax options and the associated tax levy are calculated in the property tax option 
spreadsheet for City Council consideration. The Effective Rate is the total tax rate needed to raise 
the same amount of property tax revenue for the City of Lucas from the same properties in both 
the 2017 tax year and the 2018 tax year. The rollback tax rate is the highest rate that the City of 
Lucas may adopt before voters are entitled to petition for an election to limit the rate that may be 
approved to the rollback rate. The proposed rate is the rate that will be advertised for public hearing 
notice. The first public hearing is scheduled for August 16 and the second public hearing is 
scheduled for September 6 if needed.   The scheduled date to adopt the tax rate is September 20.   
The rate adopted can be lower than the proposed rate but cannot exceed it. 
 
Motion  
 
There must be a record vote accepting the proposed tax rate for FY 2018-2019. 
 
I make a motion to approve/deny Option #______, a proposed tax rate of ______ percent, which 
is the ___________ rate for the 2018 tax year. 
 
 























Item No. 07 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

August 2, 2018 
 

Requester: Finance Director Liz Exum 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Discuss the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Proposed Budget. 
 
Background Information  
 
The draft budget presented at the July 19, 2018 workshop was prepared using projected 
information on assessed valuation and an estimated tax rate.  The City has received the certified 
roll from Collin County Appraisal District’s Office and the calculated effective tax rate of 
$.303216 and rollback rate of $.305540 from the Collin County Tax Assessor-Collector.  Staff 
has incorporated the effective tax rate of $.303216 into the new draft budget document for fiscal 
year 2018-2019.  The revised projection for the fiscal year 2018-2019 shows excess revenue over 
expenditures in the amount of $516,391. Staff practices very conservative revenue projections at 
the beginning of the fiscal year and evaluates collections during the year.  If trends are favorable, 
staff will propose mid-year adjustments for the City Council’s consideration.  
 
At the workshop held on July 19, staff received the following feedback and made the following 
adjustments to the proposed budget: 
 

• Finance/Admin account 309 Professional Services was reduced by $10,000 for market 
compensation study. 
 

• City Council account 6100-309 Professional Services $25,000 description item change 
from video streaming to technology and communication improvements. 
 

• Fire Department account 8300-200 Building Improvements $34,550 description item 
change removing digital sign and earmarking for facility improvements and/or non-
digital sign. 
 

• Fire Department account 6300-312 Paramedic School reduced by $3,900 for paramedic 
school payout for full time staff in fiscal year 2017-2018. 
 

• Public Works Engineering account 6209-309 Professional Services was reduced by 
$18,500 for on call engineering; total $37,500. 
 

• Parks account 6211-322 Contracts (Mowing) $85,500 was added to the Parks budget 
previously excluded from the July 19th workshop budget inadvertently. 
 

• Finance/Admin Personal Services were increased by $6,090 to cover expenditures for one 
month training costs for the replacement of the Executive Assistant/Special Project 
Coordinator position.  
 



Item No. 07 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

August 2, 2018 
 

• Employee appreciation event was discussed; no funding allocated. 
 

• Recommended community first aid training program; no funding allocated. 
 

• The effective tax rate of $.303216 was used in preparing the revised budget.  The 
workshop draft budget used an estimated rate of $.313418 ($.208674 for M&O and 
$.104744 for debt service). The reduction to the property tax rate is $.010202 over the 
draft budget that was used for the July 19 workshop. The total reduction compared to the 
prior year’s (FY 2017-2018 - .317948) tax rate is $.014732. 

 
• Restricted reserves for future ambulance purchase of $300,000 and $200,000 for a “Pay 

as you go” program for capital projects are included in the revised budget. 
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 

1. Detailed Proposed Budget for FY 2018-2019. 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
The financial impact for the proposed budget is varied and is outlined in detail to be reviewed 
and discussed.  
 
Recommendation  
 
No action is required.  Public hearing is scheduled for September 6. The scheduled date to adopt 
the ordinance approving the budget for FY 2018-2019 is September 20. 
 
Motion  
 
There is no motion with this item, it is for discussion purposes only.  
 



































































Item No. 08 
 
 
 
 

Requester: Public Works Director/City Engineer Stanton Foerster  

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

August 2, 2018 

 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider amending the 2017 Comprehensive Plan for the City of Lucas regarding the 2017 
Master Thoroughfare Plan as adopted in Ordinance 2017-03-00850 on Mach 16, 2017. 

Background Information  
 
During the June 7, 2018, City Council meeting, a request was made to revisit various elements of 
the 2017 Master Thoroughfare Plan and how it relates to the general health, safety and welfare of 
the citizens on Lucas. 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. 2017 Master Thoroughfare Plan 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
 
NA 
 
Motion  
 
NA 



Legend
Solid lines are thoroughfares within the city.

Dashed lines are thoroughfares outside the city.

Blue lines are proposed thoroughfares.

     Blue stars are proposed intersection improvements locations.

Thoroughfare name is followed by thoroughfare type.

No. of 

Lanes

Divided 

Roadway

Right-of-

Way or 

Easement 

Width (Feet)

Six Yes 120

Four No 60

Two No 50

Two No 50

2/13/2017

2017 Master Thoroughfare Plan

Thoroughfare

Type

  D  (Not Shown)

    A

    B

    C

    Neighborhood

    Connector

Pavement Width

(Feet)

78
Plus a 16-Foot Median

52 to 54

24 to 28

24

PARKER RD - A

HIGHLAND DR - C

W LUCAS RD - B

ESTATES PKWY - B

FOREST GROVE RD - C

E WINNINGKOFF RD - C

E LUCAS RD - B

A
N

G
EL

 P
K

W
Y 

-A

BROCKDALE PARK RD - C

SO
U

TH
V

IE
W

 D
R

 -
B

ED
G

EW
O

O
D

 D
R

 -
C

ST
IN

SO
N

 R
D

 -
C

C
O

U
N

TR
Y 

C
LU

B
R

D
 -

B

LE
W

IS
 L

N
 -

C

O
R

R
 R

D
 -

C
W

IN
N

IN
G

K
O

FF
 R

D
 -

C

SN
ID

ER
 L

N
 -

C

MAIN ST - A

BETHANY RD - A

D
IL

LE
H

A
Y

D
R

 -
A

A
LL

IS
O

N
 L

N
 -

C

IN
G

R
A

M
 L

N
 -

C

B

B

A



2017 Master Thoroughfare Plan 
 

Street Name Thoroughfare Limits 

 Type 

Allison Lane C All 

Angel Parkway A All (Not in City Limits) 

Brockdale Park Road C  First 7,000 Feet South of E. Lucas Road 

Brockdale Park Road B From 7,000 to City Limits 

Brockdale Park Road A All outside the City Limits 

Blondy Jhune Road C All 

Country Club Road B All 

East Winningkoff Rd C All 

Edgewood Drive C All 

Estates Parkway B All 

Forest Grove Road C All 

Highland Drive C All 

Ingram Lane C All 

Lewis Lane C All 

Lucas Road B All 

Orr Road C All 

Parker Road A All 

Rock Ridge Road C All 

Snider Lane (East/West) D Between Winningkoff Road and 

E. Winningkoff Rd 

Snider Lane (North/South) C From E Lucas Road to  

   E. Winningkoff Road 

Southview Drive B All 

Stinson Road C South of Edgewood Drive 

Stinson Road D W. Lucas Road to Edgewood Drive 

Winningkoff Road C All 

 

 



Item No. 09 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

August 2, 2018 

Requester: Public Works Director/City Engineer Stanton Foerster  
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Update by Staff regarding the construction activities along West Lucas Road by Reynolds Asphalt. 
 
Background Information  
 
City staff will provide the latest update regarding West Lucas Road and the meeting held with 
Reynolds Asphalt.  
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
 
NA 
 
Motion  
 
NA 
 



Item No. 10 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

August 2, 2018 

Requester: City Manager Joni Clarke  
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Discuss revisions made to the draft technology and communication survey for Lucas residents 
and provide direction to staff regarding survey content.  
 
Background Information  
 
The City of Lucas is committed to transparent, timely and accurate communication.  City staff 
updated the draft technology survey with suggestions provided by Council and would like 
direction regarding any further modifications to the survey.  This survey would have the 
potential to provide City Council and City staff appropriate information to make crucial 
decisions about communication outlets and methods to ensure the most efficiency with regards to 
city communication. At the July 5 City Council meeting, Council suggested having the survey 
sent out in hard copy form and electronically.  
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Revised preliminary technology and communication survey 
 
Budget/Financial Impact 
 
The financial impact of administering the survey would be approximately $965.00 to include a 
hardcopy in resident’s monthly water bills.  City staff uses survey software that is free unless you 
would like to download the data and then the cost would be $20 per month ($180 annually) for 
the professional version of SurveyPlanet.   
 
Recommendation  
 
NA 
 
Motion  
 
NA 
 
 
 
 



City of Lucas 
665 Country Club Road 

Lucas, Texas 75002 
972.727.8999 

www.lucastexas.us 
 

TECHNOLOGY & COMMUNICATION SURVEY 
 

1 

Dear Neighbor, 
 
It is important to the City of Lucas City Council and Staff that our community stays connected. One thing 
we have been hearing recently is the internet service is –shall we say– less than desirable for a number of 
our residents. Because of this, the City is exploring strategies to address the deficiencies and identify 
solutions to the technology-related services available to Lucas residents. 
 
As we started this research, we learned we have very little information on the specific services provided 
to the community. Most of the service providers will not provide specifics on types and areas of service. 
Therefore, we are asking for your assistance in completing the following survey. 
 
This survey has two components - the first section focuses on specific technology-related services, and the 
second section includes more general communication questions.  It is important that we know how you 
like to receive information about City services and events to keep you informed about our community.  
 
The survey should take you approximately 5 minutes to complete and we sincerely appreciate your 
feedback, and please only answer those questions that you feel comfortable answering.   
 

Residential Information: 
 

1. Please tell us the subdivision/neighborhood you live in: ____________________________________ 
 
 

2. Which Geographical Area do you reside in? (please refer to attached image) 
 

☐  Zone 1 – North of West Lucas Rd. & West of  
     Country Club Rd. (FM 1378) 
 
☐  Zone 2 – East of Country Club Rd., North of  
     Blondy Jhune Rd., & West of Orr Rd. 
 
☐  Zone 3 – East of Country Club Rd., South of  
     Blondy Jhune Rd., North of East Lucas Rd., &  
     East of Orr Rd. 
 
☐  Zone 4 – South of West Lucas Rd. & South of  
     East Lucas Rd. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.lucastexas.us/


City of Lucas 
665 Country Club Road 

Lucas, Texas 75002 
972.727.8999 

www.lucastexas.us 
 

TECHNOLOGY & COMMUNICATION SURVEY 
 

2 

Technology: 
 
3. Do you have access to the internet? 
 
☐  Yes  ☐  No 
 

4. If yes, who is your Internet Service Provider? 
 
☐  Grande Communications 
☐  Time Warner/Spectrum 
☐  AT&T 
☐  SuddenLink 
☐  Frontier 

☐  Rise Broadband 
☐  HughesNet 
☐  Cellular Card 
☐  Other (please specify) _________________

5. What level of internet speed do you purchase? 
 
☐  5 MB or less 
☐  20 MB or less 

☐  100 MB or less 
☐  > 100 MB

6. What delivery method for your Internet service? 
 
☐  Fiber 
☐  DSL 
☐  Satellite 
☐  Hot Spot 

☐  Cellular 
☐  Cable 
☐  Twisted Pair 
☐  Other (please specify) _________________

7. Please rate your level of satisfaction with your internet service provider. 
 

☐  Very Satisfied 
☐  Satisfied 

☐  Dissatisfied 
☐  Very Dissatisfied 

Communication: 
 

8. What is your overall opinion of City of Lucas communication? 
 

☐  Excellent 
☐  Very Good 

☐  Fair 
☐  Poor 
 

9. How often do you use and/or access the City’s website? 
 

☐  Never 
☐  Seldom   

☐  Sometimes 
☐  Frequently  

http://www.lucastexas.us/


City of Lucas 
665 Country Club Road 

Lucas, Texas 75002 
972.727.8999 

www.lucastexas.us 
 

TECHNOLOGY & COMMUNICATION SURVEY 
 

3 

10. How do you currently receive information about the City? (Check all that apply.) 
 
☐  Lucas Leader (City’s Newsletter) 
☐  City Website (www.lucastexas.us) 
☐  Nixle (emergency notification system) 
☐  Signage (including signs located at City Hall  
      and Fire Station)  

☐  Social Media (Nextdoor, Lucas Fire Rescue  
      Facebook, etc )  
☐  Face-to-Face Communication/Word of Mouth 
☐  Newspapers: _______________________ 
☐  Mailers: ___________________________

 
11. What is your preferred way to receive news and information about the City?  

(Please rank in order of importance; 1 = most important, etc.)  

____ Lucas Leader (City’s Newsletter) 
____ City Website (www.lucastexas.us) 
____ Nixle (emergency notification system) 
____ Signage (including signs located at  
         City Hall & Fire Station)  
____ Social Media (Nextdoor, Lucas Fire  
         Rescue Facebook, etc.) 

____ Face-to-Face Communication/Word  
         of Mouth 
____ Newspapers: _______________________ 
____ Mailers:  __________________________ 
 
 
 

 
12. What types of information are you interested in? (check all that apply) 

 
☐  Community Events 
☐  Special Projects 
☐  Law Enforcement & Fire Alerts 
☐  City Meeting & Agendas 
☐  City Council Actions & Decisions 
☐  Policy & Ordinance Information 

☐  Breaking News (road closures, water outages, 
etc.) 
☐  Public Notices 
☐  City Programs & Services 
☐  Other (please specify) _________________

13. How frequently do you read the Lucas Leader (City’s newsletter that comes with the water bill)?  

☐  Never 
☐  Seldom 

☐  Sometimes 
☐  Frequently

14. The City is considering the implementation of video streaming City Council meetings. How likely 
would you be to utilize this program?   

☐  Never 
☐  Seldom  

☐  Sometimes 
☐  Frequently 

  

http://www.lucastexas.us/


City of Lucas 
665 Country Club Road 

Lucas, Texas 75002 
972.727.8999 

www.lucastexas.us 
 

TECHNOLOGY & COMMUNICATION SURVEY 
 

4 

15. Please feel free to provide any additional comments you may feel will help the City. We sincerely 
appreciate your feedback! 

 
 

 
 
 

 

http://www.lucastexas.us/


Item No. 11 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

August 2, 2018 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Executive Session.   
 
An Executive Session is not scheduled for this meeting.  
 
 
Background Information  
 
NA 
 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
NA 
 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
 NA 
 
 
Recommendation  
 
NA 
 
 
Motion  
 
NA 
 


	00 - 08-02-2018 agenda
	AGENDA
	City of Lucas
	City Council Meeting
	August 2, 2018
	7:05 PM
	(or immediately following the Lucas Fire Control Prevention and EMS District meeting)
	City Hall – Council Chambers
	665 Country Club Road – Lucas, Texas
	Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Lucas City Council will be held on Thursday, August 2, 2018 at 7:05 pm (or immediately following the Lucas Fire Control Prevention and EMS District meeting) at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas,...
	Call to Order
	Citizen Input
	Community Interest
	Consent Agenda
	Regular Agenda
	Executive Session Agenda
	Certification

	01 - Citizen Input
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	02 - Community Interest
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	03 - Consent Agenda cs
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	03a - 07-19-2018 cc minutes
	City of Lucas
	City Council Meeting
	July 19, 2018
	6:05 P.M.
	(or immediately following the Lucas Fire Control, Prevention and EMS District Board Meeting)
	City Hall - 665 Country Club Road – Lucas Texas
	MINUTES
	Public Hearing Agenda
	Regular Agenda

	04 - Little league field
	04a - Little league field
	05 - trailhead lease
	05a - Trailhead information
	06 - FY 18-19 Proposed Tax Rate CS
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	06a - tax rate information
	07 - FY 18-19 Proposed Budget CS
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	07a - 18-19 budget backup
	08 - 2018 Thoroughfare Plan Update cs
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	08a - 2017 Thoroughfare Map Final P 1of2
	08b - 2017 Thoroughfare Map Final P 2of2
	09 - W. Lucas Road Update cs
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	10 - Technology Survey cs
	Requester: City Manager Joni Clarke
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	10a - Revised Tech  Comm Survey
	11 - Executive Session
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion


